ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 17, 2011
3:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Keller, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Herron
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Bob MI 1l er
Representative Charisse MIlett

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Alan Dick, Vice Chair
Representative Beth Kerttul a

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 78

"An Act establishing a |oan repaynent program and enploynent
incentive program for certain health care professionals enployed
in the state; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 78(HSS) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 78

SHORT TI TLE: | NCENTI VES FOR CERTAI N MEDI CAL PROVI DERS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

01/ 18/ 11 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 14/ 11

01/ 18/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H HSS, FIN

03/ 08/ 11 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 08/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 08/ 11 (H M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 15/ 11 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 15/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 11 (H M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 17/ 11 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

PAT CARR, Chi ef

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2011



Heal th Planning and Infrastructure

Division of Health Care Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
78.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:05:01 PM

CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeet i ng to or der at 3: 05 p. m
Representatives Keller, Seaton, MIllett, MIller, and Herron were
present at the call to order.

3: 05: 25 PM
REPRESENTATI VE M LLER announced that, as this was St. Patrick's
Day, it should be noted that St. Patrick was a Roman citizen,

born in Geat Britain, and naned Maewyn Succat.

HB 78-1 NCENTI VES FOR CERTAI N MEDI CAL PROVI DERS

3: 06: 26 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 78, "An Act establishing a | oan repaynent program
and enploynment incentive program for certain health care
professionals enployed in the state; and providing for an
effective date.”

[In front of the commttee was CSHB 78, Version D, which had
been adopted as the working draft by House Health and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee on March 15, 2011.]

3:06:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT noved to adopt the proposed Committee
Substitute (CS) for HB 78, 27-LS0147\X, M schel, 3/17/11, as the
wor ki ng docunent. There being no objection, Version X was
before the comm ttee.

3:07:10 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON, as the bill sponsor, explained the
changes for Version X He directed attention to page 3, line 4
of Version X, and stated that "not nore than half" was replaced
by "a portion.” He noted the additions to Version X on page 3,
line 2, "for deposit in the general fund,” and on page 3, line
11, "from noney appropriated for the purpose.”

3:08: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noved on to page 4 of Version X, and
pointed to the addition of "(i) Direct Incentive paynents, |oan
repaynents, and matching paynments shall be nade wth funds
appropriated by the legislature for that purpose.™

3:08:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON explained that on page 5, Iline 2 of
Version X, a new subsection (b) was added:

A loan is eligible for repaynent under the programif
the loan was issued by a governnent or conmmerci al
entity for the paynent of actual costs of tuition and
ot her reasonable educational and living expenses
related to the undergraduate or graduate education of
a participant who is eligible under AS 18.29.035 and
that resulted in a degree required for enploynent as a
tier I or tier Il health care professional under the
program

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON poi nted out that subsection (e) on page 5,
line 17 was added:

A loan or interest on a loan is not eligible for
repaynment under this section if the loan or interest
S

(1) to be repaid by another source, including
anot her |loan repaynent or forgiveness program or an
enpl oyer - sponsored repaynment program

(2) consolidated with a loan that is not eligible
for repaynent; or

(3) refinanced.

3:08:52 PM
CHAIR KELLER asked to clarify that both subsections (b) and (e)

on page 5 were definitions for the eligibility of l|oans for
repayment.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted the addition of a new subsection
(c), page 5, line 31, which stated:

I f sufficient funds are appropriated in a fiscal year,
the departnent shall prorate paynents based on the
nunber of approved participants in the program

3:09: 29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noved on to page 7, line 4, of Version X

stated that "score" was added, and explained that this would
assign each site a score indicating its |level of need during the

needs assessment process. Returning attention to page 6, line
21, he clarified that the change on page 7 related to this
addition: "the needs assessnent for the site.”

3:10: 20 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked if there were any questions.
3:10: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked to clarify that Version X included
| anguage for making paynments directly to the professional. He
asked if these nonies could be paid to the originator of the
| oans.

3:11: 26 PM

PAT CARR, Chief, Health Planning and Infrastructure, D vision of
Health Care Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
explained that Version X would allow paynents to be nmde to
either the professional or the loan institution.

REPRESENTATIVE M LLER asked to clarify that this would be
determ ned by the applicant. He asked about any nmatchi ng funds.

M5. CARR replied that the matching funds would go to Departnent
of Health and Social Services, which would nake the paynents.

3:12:31 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE M LLER, referring to page 3, line 1, pointed out
that the enployer "may" meke the matching paynents, and he asked
if this should be changed to "shall"™ or "wll."

M5. CARR replied that a word change woul d be based on the intent
of the bill sponsor.

3:13:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked Ms. Carr for her opinion.

M5. CARR replied that, if the paynents all canme to Departnent of
Health and Social Services, this would assure all the funds

woul d be avail abl e. She recommended a change of the wording
from"my" to "shall."

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON offered his support to a conceptual
anmendnent for this change.

3:14: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1, as
fol | ows:

Page 3, line 1, after "progrant
Del ete "may"
I nsert "shall"

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON offered his support of Concept ual
Amendnent 1.

3:14:55 PM

CHAI R KELLER opined that, as the enployer in question had chosen
to be in the program the word should be changed to "shall."

3:15:26 PM

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

3:15: 50 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M LLETT noved to report CSHB 78, Version 27-
LS0147\ X, M schel, 3/17/11, as anended, out of conmmttee wth

i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

3:16: 09 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2011



CHAI R KELLER obj ected. He expressed that he was not confortable
wi th proposed HB 78. He assured the committee that he woul d not
delay the bill, as a w de spectrum of respected advisors had
stated the inportance of the bill. He opined that HB 78 was
"purely about access to health care,” and he directed attention
to page 1, line [8], and read:

to ensure that residents throughout the state,
including recipients of nmedi cal assi stance and
Medi car e, have access to health care and that
residents of rural areas of the state, in particular,
experience i nproved access to health care..

He opined that this was a "leap of logic" to refer to access and
then "give the Comm ssioner [Departnent of Health and Social
Services] | would call it a big check book to pay off |oans and
give grants as incentives to get health care professionals to
participate and live in Alaska. The leap of logic to ne is that
wi | solve the access problens.” He acknow edged a
relationship, but not a direct connection [for paynents and
access. | He agreed that it was necessary to offer financial
incentives to conpete, and he agreed that Al aska was facing a
crisis situation if the nedical workforce was not expanded. He
reflected that this exposed the wunderlying problem for the
health care system in Al aska. He stated the difficulty for
conparing the high cost of nedical care to the value of the
health care. He offered his support for legislation that "junp

starts the nmarket back into the health care system"™ He
acknow edged that the market system was not functioning, and he
opined that governnent intervention had crowded out nore

effective and nore efficient health care policies that could
exist with a "free market, and free market principles where
financial incentives are really related to supply and denand,
like they are in other things..." He stated his belief that
conpetition and profit notive provided quality control as well
as cost control. He opined that this would lead to rising
costs. He offered to discuss his ideas for the return of a
functioni ng market. He stated that HB 78 gave "trenendous power
to the Conm ssioner of Health and Social Services." He decried
the lack of paraneters on the bill, noting that primary care was
a crisis area which was not addressed in the bill. He pointed
to the lack of designation for regional distribution, or
guidelines for providing health care professionals in conmunity
health centers. He stressed the need to solve the "cost
probl em but he stated that HB 78 woul d not reduce the costs.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2011



3:23:02 PM
CHAI R KELLER renoved hi s objection.
3:23:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON acknow edged that Chair Keller's concerns
were genuine, and he expressed his desire to continue to work
toward the resolution of those concerns.

3:23:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT, enphasizing that "no action is bad,"
stated the necessity for innovative solutions which had been
proven to work in other states. She pointed out that these
solutions had worked for those states which were conpeting for
the sanme pool of nedical professionals as Al aska. She gave
per sonal exanples of her search for health care. She endorsed
HB 78 as a start that would not be regretted. She declared the
need for workable solutions, and stated that "inaction is not a
solution.” She offered her belief that this bill was based on
t he needs of Al aska.

3:26: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER stated his agreenment with Representative
Mllett. He declared that "it's not a perfect bill, it mght
not even be a perfect start, but | think before we can resolve
the real crisis... we've got to have the physicians, we've got
to have the nurses, we've got to have the personnel in state...”
He extended his appreciation to Chair Keller.

3:27:03 PM

CHAI R KELLER pointed out that his statement was not a criticism
of Departnent of Health and Social Services. He offered his
belief that incentives and concerns coul d becone bl urred.

3:27:40 PM

There being no further objections, CSHB 78 (HSS) was reported
fromthe House Health and Social Services Standing Commttee.

3:29: 02 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2011



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 3:29 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2011



